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Maria Elena Farrell 

Q Jackson Center, PA 16133 
g RE; MUR 6658 (Unknown Respondents) 
4 
4 Dear Ms. Farrell: 

I 
This is in reference to the complaint you filed with the Federal Election Commission on 

October 9, 2012. Based on that complaint, on June 17,2015 the Commission found reason to 
believe that Unknown Respondents had violated provisions of the Federal Election Campaign 
Act of 1971, as amended by failing'to include disclaimers identifying who paid for the underlying 
communication and by failing to file independent expenditure reports with the Commission. The 
Factual and Legal Analysis, which, explains the basis for the Commission's findings, is enclosed. 

On March 5,2019, following an investigation, the Commission substituted the names of 
entities which had paid for some of the communications at issue for the term Unknown 
Respondents. The Commission also determined to take no further action other than to admonish 
the.se entities. In sum, the Commission found reason to believe PBS Coals, Inc.; Mepco, LLC; 
and Oxford Mining Company, LLC violated 52 U.S.C. §§ 30104(c)(1), 30104(g), 30120(a) and 
11 C.F.R. §§109.10 and 110.11; and that Oxford Mining Company-Kentucky, LLC violated 
52 U.S.C. §§ 30IQ4(c)(l) and 30120(a) and 11 C.F.R. §§ 109.10'and 110.1. The General 
Counsel's Report, which explains the basis for the Commission's determination, is enclosed. 

Documents related to the case will be placed on the. public record within 30 days. See 
Disclosure of Certain Documents in Enforcement and Other Matters, 81 Fed. Reg. 50,702 
(Aug. 2,2016). The Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended,.allows a complainant 
to seek judicial review of the Commission's dismissal of this action. See 52 U.S.C. 
§ 30109(a)(8). If you have any questions, please contact me at (202) 694-1650. 

Sincere! 

Mark D. Shonkwiler 
Assistant Genera] Counsel 

Enclosures 



1 FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
2 
3 FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS 
4 
5 
6 RESPONDENTS: UNKNOWN RESPONDENTS MUR: 6658 
7 
8 
9 1. INTRODUCTION 

10 The Complaint alleges that unknown respondents paid for and distributed yard signs 

11 expressly advocating the defeat of presidential candidate Barack Obama without disclaimers. 

12 Based on the available information, the Commission finds reason to believe that unknown 

13 respondents violated the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the "Act"), by 

14 failing to include a disclaimer on the signs and foiling to report independent expenditures. See 

15 2 U.S.C. §§ 434(b)(4)(H)(iii), (c)(1), (g). 441d(a); 11 C.F.R. §§ 109.10,110.11.' 

16 n. FACTUAL BACKGROUND 

17 The Complaint included a photo of a yard sign with the phrase, "STOP the WAR on 

18 COAL - FIRE OBAMA," and states that identical signs were located in various municipalities in 

19 Mercer County, Pennsylvania — particularly on Route 62 in Jackson Township and the boroughs 

20 of Jackson Center and Stoneboro. Compl. at 1, Attach. (Oct. 9,2012). Complainant also states 

21 that she sent a photo and e-mail of the sign to the Commission on September 20,2012, prior to 

22 filing the Complaint. Id The Complaint alleges that the signs were required to have a 

23 disclaimer because they expressly advocate the defeat of President Barack Obama, a candidate 

24 for re-election in 2012. Id. Finally, Complainant states that she could not identify the person, 

25 committee, or group responsible for the signs because of the missing disclaimer. Id. 

' On September 1,2014, the Act was transferred from Title 2 to a new Title 52 of the United States Code. 
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1 The available information shows that the signs were distributed as early as May 2012. 

2 See Zeke Miller, Coal Miners Protest Biden In Ohio, BUZZFEED.COM (May 17,2012), 

. 3 http://www.bu2zfeed.coin/zekeimiller/coal-miners-protest-biden-in-ohio. According to a local 

4 news article, Gary Dubois claims to have distributed 16,300 of the signs. Andrew Maykuth, Pa. 

5 coal region backing off its Democratic bent, PHILLY.COM (Oct. 28,2012), 

6 http://articles.Dhillv.com/2012-10-18/business/34778960 1 coal-region-coal-industrv-umwa. 

7 The article also includes a picture of Dubois holding one of the yard signs. Id. 

8 m. LEGAL ANALYSIS 

9 A. Failure to Include Proper Disclaimer 

10 The Act and Commission's regulations require a disclaimer whenever any person makes 

11 a disbursement for the purpose of financing public communications that expressly advocate the 

12 election or defeat of a clearly identified federal candidate. 2 U.S.C. § 441d(a); 11 C.F.R. 

13 §110.11 (a)(2). If the communication is not authorized by a candidate or an authorized 

14 committee, the disclaimer must clearly state the name and permanent street address, telephone 

15 number, or World Wide Web address of the person who paid for the communication and state 

16 that the communication was not authorized by any candidate or candidate's committee. 2 U.S.C. 

17 § 441d(a)(3); 11 C.F.R. § 110.11(b)(3);2 jeea/jo 11 C.F.R. § 109.11 (requiring, "non-

18 authorization" disclaimer for independent expenditures). 

19 The signs identified by the Complaint qualify as public communications. A public 

20 communication includes "outdoor advertising facility" and "any other form of general public 

21 political advertising." 11 C.F.R. § 100.26. Signs, including yard signs, are encompassed within 

^ The disclaimer notice on printed materials must appear within a printed box set apart from the other 
contents in the communication, and the print must have a reasonable degree of color contrast between the 
background and the printed statement and be of a sufficient type-size to be clearly readable by the recipient of the 
communication. 2 U.S.C. § 441 d(c); 11 C.F.R. § 110.11 (cX2). 

http://www.bu2zfeed.coin/zekeimiller/coal-miners-protest-biden-in-ohio
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1 the phrase, "any other form of general public political advertising," although they are not 

2 specifically enumerated in the definitions of public communication in 2 U.S.C. § 431(22) and 

3 11 C.F.R. § 100.26. See Factual and Legal Analysis at 3, MUR 6546 (Michael J. Fox) (dismissal 

4 of low rated-rated matter involving large sign on commercial property); 11 CF.R. 

5 §110.11 (c)(2)(i) (specific reference to "signs" in a provision setting out requirements for 

6 disclaimers on printed communications). 

7 The signs identified by the Complaint contain express advocacy. A communication 
> 

8 contains express advocacy when, among other things, it uses phrases such as "vote against Old 

9 Hickory," "reject the incumbent," or uses campaign slogans or individual words that in context 

10 can have no other reasonable meaning than to urge the defeat of a clearly identified federal 

11 candidate. 11 C.F.R. § 100.22(a). The phrase "FIRE OBAMA" constitutes express advocacy 

12 because it refers to President Barack Obama, who was a candidate for re-election, and is an 

13 exhortation to vote against him and defeat his candidacy. 

14 The "STOP the WAR on COAL - FIRE OBAMA" signs contain express advocacy and 

15 are public communications. Therefore, provided that no candidate authorized or paid for the 

16 signs, the person who paid for and disseminated the signs should have included a disclaimer 

17 identifyir^ who paid for the signs, and the person's address, telephone number, or World Wide 

18 Web address. Accordingly, the Commission finds reason to believe that unknown respondents 

19 violated 2 U.S.C. § 441 d(a) and 11 C.F.R. § 110.11. 

20 B. Failure to Report Independent Expenditure 

21 Under the Act and Conunission regulations, unauthorized political committees, as well as 

22 other persons, must file reports disclosing their independent expenditures. See 2 U.S.C. 

23 § 434(b)(4)(H)(iii) (requiring non-connected political conamittees to report independent 
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1 expendiixires); id. § 434(c)(1) (requiring every person other than a political committee to report 

2 independent expenditures that exceed $250 during a calendar year); 11 C.F.R. § 109.10(a)-(b) 

3 (requiring political committees to report independent expenditures and every person other than a 

4 political committee to report independent expenditures that exceed $250 during a calendar year). 

5 Depending on the amount and timing of the expenditures, a person may have to rile a 24- or 48-

6 hour notice of independent expenditures. See 2 U.S.C. § 434(g)(1)(A), 11 C.F.R. § 109.10(d) 

7 (requiring 24-hour notices for independent expenditures aggregating $1,000 or more arier the 

8 20th day, but more than 24 hours, before the date of an election); 2 U.S.C. § 434(g)(2)(A), 

9 11 C.F.R. § 109.10(c) (requiring 48-hour notices for independent expenditures aggregating 

10 $10,000 or more at any time up to and including the 20th day before the date of an election). 

11 Here, the available information suggests that the cqsts of the signs constituted 

12 independent expenditures because the signs expressly advocated the defeat of President Obama 

13 and it appears that the signs were not paid for by any candidate. If a political committee made 

14 the expenditures, it should have reported the expenditures in reports riled with the Commission. 
> 
1 

15 If a person other than a committee made the expenditures and they exceeded $250, the person 

16 should have filed a report with the Commission. Furthermore, based on the timing and amount 

17 spent on the signs, the unknown respondents may have been required to rile 24- or 48-hour 

18 notices of independent expenditures. Accordingly, we recommend that the Commission rind 

19 reason to believe that unknown respondents violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(b)(4)(H)(iii), or (c)(1) and 

20 (g), and 11 C.F.R. § 109.10, by failing to report independent expenditures. 



1 
2 BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
3 
4 In the Matter of ) 
5 ) MUR6658 
6 Unknown Respondents ) 
7 ) 
8 
9 SECOND GENERAL COUNSEL'S REPORT 

10 
11 I. ACTIONS RECOMMENDED 

12 We recommend that the Commission: (1) substitute the names PBS Coals; Mepco, LLC; 

13 Oxford Mining Company, LLC; and Oxford Mining Company-Kentucky, LLC in the place of 

14 "Unknown Respondents" in the Commission's previous findings that Unknown Respondents 

15 violated 52 U.S.C. §§ 30104(c)(1) and 30120(a), and 11 C.F.R. §§ 109.10 and 110.11; (2) 

16 substitute the names PBS Coals; Mepco, LLC; and Oxford Mining Company, LLC in the place 

17 of "Unknown Respondents" in the Commission's previous fmdings that Unknown Respondents 

18 violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(g); (3) take no further action other than to approve letters of caution 

19 as to PBS Coals; Mepco, LLC; Oxford Mining Company, LLC, and Oxford Mining Company-

20 Kentucky, LLC; and (4) close the file. 

21 n. BACKGROUND 

22 This matter arose from a Complaint regarding the widespread appearance of yard signs in 

23 Western Pennsylvania and the surrounding coal mining region stating "STOP the WAR on 

24 COAL - FIRE OBAMA" that lacked any disclaimer indicating who paid for the signs.' The 

25 Commission found reason to believe that Unknown Respondents violated 52 U.S.C. § 30120(a) 

26 and 11 C.F.R. § 110.11, by failing to include a proper disclaimer on the signs, and violated 

27 52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(4)(H)(iii), or (c)(1) and (g), and 11 C.F.R. § 109.10, by failing to disclose 

Compl. at 1 (Oct. 9.2012). 
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1 independent expenditures.^ The Commission commenced an investigation to identify the 

2 unknown respondents and obtain additional information about the distribution of the signs. 

3 in. SUMMARY OF INVESTIGATION 

4 The investigation revealed that Gary DuBois was the vendor who sold the signs at issue.^ 

5 DuBois bought a total of 10,500 signs in order to resell them.^ DuBois paid $46,174.30 for the 

6 signs ($4.75 per sign) and sold each sign for $6.^ In total, DuBois sold 10,460 of the signs to 

7 "hundreds possibly thousands of individuals" and some businesses,® but sold the most substantial 

8 quantities to four companies: PBS Coals; Mepco, LLC; Oxford Mining Company, LLC; and 

9 Oxford Mining Company-Kentucky, LLC.' After he learned of the disclaimer requirement in 

10 September 2012, after the filing of the Complaint in this matter, DuBois created "blank 

11 disclaimer stickers for customers to use and fill in if they chose to display the signs in public."® 

12 DuBois personally "put up" 20 of the remaining 40 signs with "the legally required disclaimer."' 

^ iS'ee Certification, MUR 6638 (June 17,201S); First Gen. Counsel's Rpt. at S-6. 

^ Du Bois was identified as the potential vendor in this matter because he previously sold the same signs to 
Murray Energy Corporation; the signs sold to Murray Energy Company were the subject of a previous matter settled 
by the Commission. See First Gen. Counsel's Rpt. at 3 n. 3, MUR 6659 (Murray Energy Corporation). In MUR 
6659, Murray Energy Corporation entered into a settlement agreement with the Commission for publicly distributing 
signs without a disclaimer and failing to disclose independent expenditures. See Certification, MUR 6659 (Murray 
Energy Corporation) (Sept. 10,2015). 

* Letter fiom Gary DuBois to Kamau Philbert, Staff Attorney, FEC at 1 (Oct. 5,2015). DuBois decided to 
sell the signs afier seeing similar signs in March and April 2012 in Kentucky, West Virginia, and Virginia. Id. at 2. 

5 Id at 1. 

« Id 

^ DuBois represented that there were no individual buyers who spent over $1,000 ibr signs. DuBois further 
represented that he did not retain any supporting documentation of the companies' purchases. See, e.g.. Letter from I 
Gary DuBois to Kamau Philbert, Staff Attorney, FEC at 1 (Nov. 10,2015); Letter from Gary .DuBois to Kamau 
Philbert, Staff Attorney, FEC at 1 (March 25,2016). 

* Letter^from Gary DuBois to Kamau Philbert, Staff Attorney, FEC at l ,(Oct. 5,2015); Letter from Gary 
DuBois to Kamau Philbert, Staff Attorney, FEC at 1 (Nov. 10,2015). 

i 

' Letter from Gary DuBois to Kamau Philbert, Staff Attorney, FEC at 1 (Oct. 5,2015). 
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1 Each of the four companies identified by DuBois as purchasing a significant amount of 

2 signs were notified as potential respondentsand each submitted a response to the Commission, 

3 as described below. 

4 A. PBS Coals 

5 PBS Coals paid $S,8S0 for 975 signs.'' PBS Coals claims that it is unable to determine 

6 whether its signs included a disclaimer because the employees who authorized the sign purchase 

7 no longer work for the company. PBS Coals also states that it is unlikely that the signs 

8 Complainant observed were actual PBS Coals signs because Mercer County, PA is over 100 

9 miles from PBS Coals' operations in Somerset County, PA. 

10 B. Mepco, LLC 

11 Mepco paid $3,525 for an unknown number of signs. Mepco asserts that it was 

12 unaware that the signs required a disclaimer or that the purchase required disclosure because 

13 none of the other signs displayed in the region contained a disclaimer, and it reasonably believed 

14 that the signs advocated its long held policy position that the federal government maintain 

See Memorandum from the Office of the General Counsel to the Commission (May 19,2016); Letters from 
Kathleen Guith, Acting Assoc. Gen. Counsel for Enforcement, PEC, to PBS Coals, Mepco, LLC, Oxford Mining 
Company, LLC, and Oxford Mining Company-Kentucky, LLC (June 8,2016). 

" Letter from Gary DuBois to Kamau Philbert, Staff Attorney, PEC at 1 (March 25,2016). PBS Coals 
claims that it spent $5,568 for the signs. PBS Coals Resp. at 1 (June 28,2016). 

PBS Coals Resp. at 1. PBS Coals explains that at the time of the Complaint, it was owiied and operated by 
Severstal Resources, but that it was purchased by Corsa Coal Corp. in August 2014. PBS Coals states that none of 
the current officers and members of upper management of either PBS Coals or Corsa Coal worked for PBS 
Coals/Severstal when the signs were purchased. Id. 

Id PBS Coals did not address its foilure to file an independent expenditure report for its sign purchases. 

Letter from Gary DuBois to Kamau Philbert, StaffAttorney, PEC at 1 (Nov. 10,2015); Mepco Resp. at 1 
(June 30,2016). Mepco states that it was reorganized through bankruptcy in August of 2013 and that none of 
Mepco's management team involved with the sign purchase is currently employed by Mepco. Mepco Resp. at 1. 
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1 policies that encourage the production and use of coal.'^ Mepco also asserts that it has not 

2 purchased, distributed, or displayed the signs since the time of the Complaint, and that the 

3 Complaint is vague because it does not specifically identify Mepco nor does it state any specific 

4 time or place where Mepco posted any sign.Mepco requests that the Commission recognize 

5 these factors, as well as the minimal amount of the purchase and that the violation will not 

6 reoccur now that Mepco is aware of the disclaimer and disclosure requirements. 

7 C. Oxford Mining Company, LLC & Oxford Mining Company-Kentucky, LLC 
8 
9 Oxford Mining Company, LLC paid $5,673.89 and Oxford Mining Company-Kentucky, 

10 LLC paid $712.02 for an unknown number of signs." The joint response, submitted by the 

11 companies' mutual parent company,'^ asserts that the Commission's Factual and Legal Analysis 

12 does not show that either entity paid for or distributed the signs described in the Complaint.^" 

13 The response also states that the companies' are now subject to a corporate Code of Conduct and 

14 Ethics policy that strictly prohibits the type of activities alleged in the Complaint — the policy 

15 specifically limits employees' ability to engage in political activities using company resources.^' 

A 

Mepco Resp. at 1,2. 

Mepco Resp. at 1-2. 

" Idstl. .. 

Letter from Gary DiiBois to Kamau Philbert, Staff Attorney, FEC at 1 (Nov. 10,2015). 

" Oxford Mining Company, LLC and Oxford Mining Company-Kentucky, LLC (collectively "Oxford 
Mining") were sold in December of 2014, and are now subsidiaries of Westmoreland Coal Company 
("Westmoreland"), a publicly traded coal mining company with operations throu^out the United States and 
Canada. Oxford Mining Resp. at 2 (July 25,2016) (joint response of Oxford Mining). 

] 
™ Westmoreland claims that, since it purchased Oxford Mining, many corporate changes have occurred and 
many Oxford Mining employees who may have knowledge of any sign purchases are no longer with the company. 
Oxford Mining Resp. at 2. Westmoreland claims that Oxford Mining Company, LLC's operations are in Ohio, 
nearly 150 miles away from Stoneboro, Pennsylvania where the signs described in the Complaint were displayed, 
and that Oxford Mining Company-Kentucky, LLC's operations are even further away in Kentucky. Id. at 1-2. 

Oxford Mining Resp. at 2, Ex. B. 7-
? 
r 

i 
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1 The response asks that the Commission dismiss the matter because of these factors, the reduced 

2 risk of a recurring violation, and the minimal amount involved.^^ 

3 IV. LEGAL ANALYSIS 

4 None of the companies presented any information showing that its signs included a 

5 disclaimer. As set forth in the Commission's Factual and Legal Analysis, an appropriate 

6 disclaimer was required on the signs.^^ As we have identified PBS Coals; Mepco, LLC; Oxford 

7 Mining Company, LLC; and Oxford Mining Company-Kentucky, LLC as entities that paid for 

8 and disseminated signs, we recommend that the Commission substitute each entity's name in the 

9 place of "Unknown Respondents" in the Commission's previous finding that there is reason to 

10 believe that Unknown Respondents violated 52 U.S.C. § 30120(a) and 11 C.F.R. § 110.11, by 

11 failing to include a proper disclaimer on the signs.^* 

12 Further, none of the respondents reported their disbursements for the signs as 

13 independent expenditures. As set forth in the Commission's Factual and Legal Analysis, each 

14 respondent should have, but did not, disclose its purchase to the Commission in an independent-

15 expenditure report covering the relevant quarterly reporting period.We recommend, therefore, 

16 that the Commission substitute PBS Coals; Mepco, LLC; Oxford Mining Company, LLC; and 

17 Oxford Mining Company-Kentucky, LLC's names in the place of "Unknown Respondents" in 

^ Oxford Mining Resp. at 1,3-4. 

^ Factual & Legal Analysis at 2-3 ('T&LA"). Under the Act and Commission regulations, any public 
communication that expressly advocates the election or deleat of a clearly identified candidate must include a 
disclaimer. See 52 U.S.C. § 30120(a); 11 C.F.R. §§ 100.22(a). 110.11(a)(2), (c)(2). 

Since we are reconunending that the Commission take no further action, we are not recommending that the 
Commission substitute Westmoreland in place of Oxford Mining. We also do not recommend that the Commission 
make any findings regarding DuBois because he spent only $95 ($4.75 x 20) to publicly distribute his own signs. 

" F&LA at 3-4; see 52 U.S.C. § 30104(c) (requiring a person other than a political committee who makes 
independent expenditures exceeding $250 to file an independent-expenditure report with the Commission). 
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1 the Commission's previous findings that there is reason to believe that Unknown Respondents 

2 violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(c) by failing to report expenditures made in connection with the 

3 signs. Furthermore, a person that makes independent expenditures aggregating $1,000 or more 

4 after the 20th day, but more than 24 hours, before the date of an election, must file a report 

5 describing the expenditures within 24 hours. Oxford Mining Company-Kentucky, LLC did 

1 6 not make expenditures aggregating $1,000 or more for its signs and so is not within the scope of 

^ 7 the 24-hour reporting requirement. But to the extent that PBS Coals, Mepco, LLC, and Oxford 

^ 8 Mining Company, LLC made a disbursement during this time period, each was required to file a 

9 24-hour report.^' We recommend, therefore, that the Commission substitute PBS Coals; Mepco, 

10 LLC; and Oxford Mining Company, LLC's names in the place of "Unknown Respondents" in 

11 the Commission's previous findings that there is reason to believe that Unknown Respondents 

12 violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(g) by failing to report expenditures made in connection with the 

13 signs.^* 

14 The full cost of PBS Coals' sign purchases was at least $5,568, the cost of Mepco's sign 

15 purchases was $3,525, the cost of Oxford Mining Company, LLC's sign purchases was 

^ 52 U.S.C. § 30104(g)(lXA). Political committees and other persons must file 24-hour notices by 11:59 
p.m. on the day following the date on which the independent expenditure communication is publicly distributed. 
See 11 C.F.R. §§ 104.4(c), 109.10(d). 

" The companies' lack of records did not allow us to definitively determine that any of the Respondents made 
their expenditures within the 24-hour reporting timeframe. But the investigation showed that DuBois sold the signs 
through the foil of 2012, a timeframe that could encompass the reporting period that precedes the general election. 
The Act and Commission regulations also require 48-hour notices for independent expenditures aggregating $10,000 
or more at any time up to and including the 20th day before the date of an election. See 52 U.S.C. § 30104(g)(2)(A); 
11 CJP.R. § 109.10(c). Although the Commission found reason to believe the "Unknown Respondents" violated 
these provisions, the investigation showed that none of the respondent companies made expenditures for the signs 
that aggregated $10,000 or more. 

^ We are not including the Commission's previous findings that Unknown Respondents violated 52 U.S.C. 
§ 30104(b)(4)(H)(iii) because our investigation did not find that a political committee paid for any of the signs. See 
F&LAat4. 
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1 $5,673.89, and the cost of Oxford Mining Company-Kentucky, LLC's sign purchases was 

2 $712.02. In previous matters involving similar facts and amounts in violation, the Commission 

3 has not pursued these cases on the basis that the apparent cost of the communication was de 

4 minimis?^ Accordingly, we recommend that the Commission exercise its prosecutorial 

5 discretion and take no further action other than to issue letters of caution as to PBS Coals; 

6 Mepco, LLC; Oxford Mining Company, LLC; and Oxford Mining Company-Kentucky, LLC.^ 

7 V. RECOMMENDATIONS 

8 1. Substitute the names PBS Coals; Mepco, LLC; Oxford Mining Company, LLC; and 
9 Oxford Mining Company-Kentucky, LLC in place of "Unknown Respondents" in the 

10 Commission's previous findings that Unknown Respondents violated 52 U.S.C. 
11 §§ 30104(c)(1) and 30120(a). and 11 C.F.R.§§ 109.10 and 110.11. 

12 2. Substitute the names PBS Coals; Mepco, LLC; and Oxford Mining Company, LLC in 
13 place of "Unknown Respondents" in the Commission's previous findings that Unknown 
14 . Respondents violated 52 U.S.C. § 30104(g). 

15 3. Take no further action other than to approve letters of caution to PBS Coals; Mepco, 
16 LLC; Oxford Mining Company, LLC; and Oxford Mining Company-Kentucky, LLC. 

17 4. Approve the appropriate letters. 

^ See, e.g., MUR6642 (Christopher Kaufhnan) (taking no further action on partial disclaimer and 
independent expenditure reporting violations and issuing a letter of caution where cost of billboards at issue 
amounted to $3,000); MUR 6377 (Harry Reid Votes) (dismissing allegation as to radio advertisement with partial 
disclaimer and issuing a letter of caution where cost of advertisement was $2,135). 

10 See Heckler v. Chaney, 470 U.S. 821 (1985). 
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1 5. Close the file. 

2 
3 
4 Lisa J. Stevenson 
5 Acting General Counsel 
6 
7 
8 
9 2/14/19 

10 Date Kathleen M. Guith 
11 Associate General Counsel 
12 for Enforcement 
13 

Jg 'TfioAA' 
16 Mark Shonkwiler 
17 Assistant General Counsel 


